
 

Coachella Civic Center, Hearing Room 

53-462 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California 

 (760) 398-3502      www.coachella.org 

AGENDA 

 

OF A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE  

 

 

 CITY OF COACHELLA 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA PLANNING COMMISSION MARCH 17TH, 2021 

March 17, 2021 

6:00 PM 
 

 

PURSUANT TO EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20, THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED BY TELECONFERENCE 

AND THERE WILL BE NO IN-PERSON PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING LOCATION. 

YOU MAY SUBMIT YOUR PUBLIC COMMENTS TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION ELECTRONICALLY. MATERIAL 

MAY BE EMAILED TO LLOPEZ@COACHELLA.ORG, JCARRILLO@COACHELLA.ORG, 

YBECERRIL@COACHELLA.ORG. 

TRANSMITTAL PRIOR TO THE START OF THE MEETING IS REQUIRED. ANY CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 

DURING OR AFTER THE MEETING WILL BE DISTRIBUTED TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION AND RETAINED FOR 

THE OFFICIAL RECORD. 

YOU MAY PROVIDE TELEPHONIC COMMENTS BY CALLING THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT AT (760)-398-

3102 NO LATER THAN 4:00 P.M. THE DAY OF THIS MEETING TO BE ADDED TO THE PUBLIC COMMENT QUEUE. 

AT THE APPROPRIATE TIME,      YOU WILL BE CALLED SO THAT YOU MAY PROVIDE YOUR PUBLIC TESTIMONY 

TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION. 

THE PUBLIC SHALL HAVE ACCESS TO WATCH THE MEETING LIVE USING FOLLOWING ZOOM WEBINAR LINK: 

 

PLEASE CLICK THE LINK BELOW TO JOIN THE WEBINAR: 

HTTPS://US02WEB.ZOOM.US/J/88900660100?PWD=C1UWVJB0SVPKK3NTWWNQNEFAC214ZZ09 

PASSCODE: 674336 

OR IPHONE ONE-TAP :  

    US: +16699006833,,88900660100#,,,,*674336#  OR +12532158782,,88900660100#,,,,*674336#  

 WEBINAR ID: 889 0066 0100 

PASSCODE: 674336 

 

1

http://www.coachella.org/


Agenda Regular Meeting of the City of Coachella Planning Commission March 17th, 2021 March 17, 

2021 

Page 2 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

ROLL CALL: 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

“At this time the Commission may announce any items being pulled from the agenda or continued to another 

date or request the moving of an item on the agenda.” 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

1. Planning Commission Minutes 02.17.2021 

2. Planning Commission Minutes 01.20.2021 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

“The public may address the Commission on any item of interest to the public that is not on the agenda, but is 

within the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes.” 

REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

NON-HEARING ITEMS: 

3. Review of Public Art – Harvest Mural Frame in City Library 

4. Request for 12-month Time Extension for Conditional Use Permits (CUP 299 and CUP 300) to allow a 

1,839 square foot retail cannabis business and a 1,432 square foot bar/pub with on-site alcohol sales at 1694 

6th Street. 

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL): 

5. Coachella Greenery Project 

 

a) Conditional Use Permit 334 proposes to establish an 1100 square foot cannabis dispensary within 

units 1 and 3 of the existing industrial building located at 84-801 Avenue 48.  

 

b) Conditional Use Permit 293, (Modification), proposes to modify the phasing plan in order to convert 

what was approved as an interim facility into an 1100 square foot retail cannabis business and in the 

2



Agenda Regular Meeting of the City of Coachella Planning Commission March 17th, 2021 March 17, 

2021 

Page 3 

 

future remove the existing building that will contain the dispensary and relocate the dispensary within 

Phase 1 of the cannabis cultivation project that was previously approved as part of CUP No. 293.   

INFORMATIONAL: 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 

 

Complete Agenda Packets are available for public inspection in the  

Planning Department at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California, and on the  

City’s website www.coachella.org. 

 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

3

http://www.coachella.org/


Coachella Civic Center, Hearing Room 
53-462 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California

(760) 398-3502      www.coachella.org

MINUTES
OF A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE

CITY OF COACHELLA

PLANNING COMMISSION

February 17, 2021 
6:00 PM 

1. Pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20, this meeting will be conducted by teleconference and there will be
no in-person public access to the meeting location. 

You may submit your public comments to the Planning Commission electronically. Material may be      
emailed to llopez@coachella.org, jcarrillo@coachella.org, ybecerril@coachella.org. 

Transmittal prior to the start of the meeting is required. Any correspondence received during or after the 
meeting will be distributed to the Planning Commission and retained for the official record. 

You may provide telephonic comments by calling the Planning Department at (760)-398-3102 no later 
than 4:00 p.m. the day of this meeting to be added to the public comment queue. At the appropriate time,      
you will be called so that you may provide your public testimony to the Planning Commission. 

The public shall have access to watch the meeting live using following: 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88900660100?pwd=c1UwVjB0SVpkK3NtWWNqNEFac214Zz09 

Passcode: 674336 
Or iPhone one-tap :  
US: +16699006833,,88900660100#,,,,*674336# or +12532158782,,88900660100#,,,,*674336#  

CALL TO ORDER:  
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Coachella was called to order at 6:08 p.m. 
virtually by Chair Soliz. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

The pledge of allegiance was foregone by Chair Soliz. 

4

Item 1.



Agenda Planning Commission February 17, 2021 
Page 2 

ROLL CALL: 
Present: Alternate Commissioner Leal, Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Huazano, Commissioner 
Navarrete, Vice Chair Virgen, Chair Soliz. 

Absent: None.  

At 6:14pm Chair Soliz asked Vie Chair Virgen to lead the meeting and stepped down from his 
appointment.  

Commission welcomed Frank Figueroa to the planning commission as a new commissioner.  

Vice Chair Virgen continued to lead the meeting from this point forward.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

“AT THIS TIME THE COMMISSION MAY ANNOUNCE ANY ITEMS BEING PULLED FROM THE AGENDA OR

CONTINUED TO ANOTHER DATE OR REQUEST THE MOVING OF AN ITEM ON THE AGENDA.” 

No changes per Luis Lopez. 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

1. Planning Commission Minutes January 20th, 2021.

Motion to Approve of the Minutes for the January 20th Planning Commission Meeting

Made by: Commissioner Navarrete.
Seconded by: Commissioner Gonzalez.
Motion passes by the following vote:
AYES: Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Huazano, Commissioner Navarrete, Vice Chair Virgen,
Chair Soliz.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

Bill Sanchez, applicant for one of the items will speak about written communication during the appropriate time 
per Luis Lopez. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

“The public may address the Commission on any item of interest to the public that is not on the agenda, but is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes.” 

None. 

REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

5

Item 1.



Agenda Planning Commission February 17, 2021 
Page 3 

- Request for an engagement plan for the housing element requested by Commissioner Huazano.
- Discussion regarding focus meetings with the community, website surveys, steering committee

formation all items which can/ will be presented to council and then brought back to planning
commission per Luis Lopez. Planning commissioners may attend said meetings currently forecasted to
be virtual given current pandemic.

NON-HEARING ITEMS: 

2. Request for 12-month Time Extension for Conditional Use Permit No. 303 and Architectural Review 18-
11 to allow a-new 2,100 square foot retail cannabis business as part of a new 6,900 square foot multi-tenant
commercial center located at the northwest corner of Grapefruit Boulevard and 9th Street. Coachella Green
Haus, Applicant.

-Coachella Greenhaus slide show presented by Luis Lopez, Director of Development Services.

- Luis Lopez advised grading for future construction began week of the 9th of February.

-Commissioner Gonzalez advised the City needed to consider this allowance of a time extension and advised
there was already one abandoned hotel project in the city.

- Luis Lopez advised that City Council did approve a 6 month time extension.

- Applicant Bill Sanchez that council did include a sunset clause in their approval of the time extension.

Motion to Approve Item 2. Request for 12-month Time Extension for Conditional Use Permit No. 303 and 
Architectural Review 18-11 to allow a-new 2,100 square foot retail cannabis business as part of a new 6,900 
square foot multi-tenant commercial center located at the northwest corner of Grapefruit Boulevard and 9th 
Street. Coachella Green Haus, Applicant. 

Made by: Commissioner Gonzalez. 
Seconded by: Commissioner Navarrete. 
Motion passes by the following vote: 
AYES: Commissioner Figueroa, Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Huazano, Commissioner 
Navarrete, Vice Chair Virgen. 
NOES: None.  
ABSTAIN: None.  
ABSENT: None.  

3. Review of Public Art - Desert Tree Sculpture Installation at 810 Vine Street.

Presentation slide show by Gabriel Martin, Economic Development Director.
- Vice Chair Virgen asked about the application process that took place for the art pieces being presented
at this meeting.
- Applicant Jimmy-Guadalupe Meza spoke about piece and artist.
- Commissioner Gonzalez recommended adding lights.
- Luis Lopez spoke about Art in Public Places.

Motion to Approve Item 3. Review of Public Art - Desert Tree Sculpture Installation at 810 Vine Street.  

6

Item 1.



Agenda Planning Commission February 17, 2021 
Page 4 

Made by: Commissioner Gonzalez. 
Seconded by: Commissioner Figueroa. 
Motion passes by the following vote: 
AYES: Commissioner Figueroa, Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Huazano, Commissioner 
Navarrete, Vice Chair Virgen. 
NOES: None.  
ABSTAIN: None.  
ABSENT: None.  

4. 3-D Wall Art Mural Installation at 810 Vine Street.

Presentation slide show by Gabriel Martin, Economic Development Director.

Discussion about artist and the art installation.

Motion to Approve Item 4. Review of Public Art - 3-D Wall Art Mural Installation at 810 Vine Street.

Made by: Commissioner Huazano.
Seconded by: Commissioner Gonzalez.
Motion passes by the following vote:
AYES: Commissioner Figueroa, Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Huazano, Commissioner
Navarrete, Vice Chair Virgen.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.

5. Mujeres Murals Art Exhibition Installation at 1515 6th Street.

Presentation slide show by Gabriel Martin, Economic Development Director.

Discussion with artist Clarissa Cervantes about the art piece and the type of work being done in the
Valley, new installation to go in front of what is now the office for Alianza (Non-profit).

Commissioner Huazano asked if it would be a conflict for her to vote on this item. Attorney at this virtual 
meeting, Bob Hargreaves advised no.  

Motion to Approve Item 5. Mujeres Murals Art Exhibition Installation at 1515 6th Street. With the added 
recommendation of allocating $1000 not $500 to this project.  

Made by: Commissioner Gonzalez. 
Seconded by: Commissioner Figueroa. 
Motion passes by the following vote: 
AYES: Commissioner Figueroa, Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Huazano, Commissioner 
Navarrete, Vice Chair Virgen. 
NOES: None.  
ABSTAIN: None.  

7

Item 1.



Agenda Planning Commission February 17, 2021 
Page 5 
 

ABSENT: None.  

 

6.  Angel of The Valley Art Mural Installation. 

Presentation slide show by Gabriel Martin, Economic Development Director.  
This piece shall be protected with anti-graffiti protectant per Mr. Martin.  
 
Public Comment made by Jimmy Meza during this item to advise more funds needed touchups panding 
for Item 3. Tree sculpture.  
 
Vice Chair Virgen advised all to continue with item 6. And then could address Item 3. Again.  
 

Motion to Approve Item 6. Angel of The Valley Art Mural Installation. 
 
Made by: Commissioner Figueroa. 
Seconded by: Commissioner Vice Chair Virgen. 
Motion passes by the following vote: 
AYES: Commissioner Figueroa, Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Huazano, Commissioner 
Navarrete, Vice Chair Virgen. 
NOES: None.  
ABSTAIN: None.  
ABSENT: None.  

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL):  

None. 

INFORMATIONAL: 

Study Session last wed. on additional dwelling units, Luis Lopez advised there was not enough time to go 
through ADU presentation as LLMD presentation took up most the time. Will be rescheduled for a later 
date.  

There will be 2 planning commission meetings in March. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
Meeting adjourned at 7:23 p.m. by Vice Chair Virgen.    
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
 
______________________ 
Yesenia Becerril 
Planning Secretary 

8

Item 1.



Agenda Planning Commission February 17, 2021 
Page 6 
 
 
 

 
Complete Agenda Packets are available for public inspection in the  

Planning Department at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California, and on the  
City’s website www.coachella.org. 

 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

9

Item 1.



 

Coachella Civic Center, Hearing Room 
53-462 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California 

 (760) 398-3502      www.coachella.org 

MINUTES  

OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE  

 
 

 CITY OF COACHELLA  

PLANNING COMMISSION 

January 20, 2021 
6:00 PM 

 
 

 

1. Pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20, this meeting will be 
conducted by teleconference and 

there will be no in-person public access to the meeting location. 

Pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20, this meeting will be 
conducted by teleconference and 

there will be no in-person public access to the meeting location. 

***amended 01/20/2021*** https://youtu.be/OA1WsURsMnQ 

CALL TO ORDER:  
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Coachella was called to order at 6:04 p.m. 
virtually by Vice Chair Virgen. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Lead by Yesenia Becerril. 

ROLL CALL: 
 
Present: Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Huazano, Commissioner Navarrete, Vice Chair 
Virgen, Alternate Commissioner Leal. 
Absent: Chair Soliz. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

“AT THIS TIME THE COMMISSION MAY ANNOUNCE ANY ITEMS BEING PULLED FROM THE AGENDA OR CONTINUED TO 

ANOTHER DATE OR REQUEST THE MOVING OF AN ITEM ON THE AGENDA.” 

Item 4. As published on the original agenda was already included in item 2. Therefore, item 4. was 
removed from the agenda to avoid redundancy per Luis Lopez.  
 
 

10

Item 2.



Agenda Planning Commission January 20, 2021 
Page 2 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

1. PC Meeting Minutes for December 16th, 2020. 
 
Motion to approve item 1. PC Meeting Minutes for the December 16th, 2020 meeting. 
Made by:  Commissioner Gonzalez. 
Seconded by: Commissioner Navarrete. 
Motion passes by the following vote: 
AYES: Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Huazano, Commissioner Navarrete, Vice Chair Virgen, 
Alternate commissioner Leal 
NOES: None.  
ABSTAIN: None.  
ABSENT: Chair Soliz. 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

None. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

“The public may address the Commission on any item of interest to the public that is not on the agenda, but is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes.” 

None.  

REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

Update on the 6th cycle housing element. 

NON-HEARING ITEMS: 

2. Discussion of the 6th Cycle Housing Element Update to the City’s General Plan and presentation of work 
to date, including the mandatory 5th Cycle Re-zoning efforts.  
 
Update on the 6th Cycle Housing Element was provided at this time.  
 
Presentation made by Luis Lopez.  

No Motion was made as this is a long-term policy and the presentation was for information and discussion 
only.  

Comment made by resident/customer- Pedro Padilla. 

3. Request for 12-month Time Extension for Conditional Use Permit No. 303 and Architectural Review 18-
11 to allow a-new 2,100 square foot retail cannabis business as part of a new 6,900 square foot multi-tenant 
commercial center located at the northwest corner of Grapefruit Boulevard and 9th Street. Coachella Green 
Haus, Applicant. 

 

11

Item 2.



Agenda Planning Commission January 20, 2021 
Page 3 
 

 

 

Motion to approve non-hearing item 3.  
Request for 12-month Time Extension for Conditional Use Permit No. 303 and Architectural Review 18-
11 to allow a-new 2,100 square foot retail cannabis business as part of a new 6,900 square foot multi-
tenant commercial center located at the northwest corner of Grapefruit Boulevard and 9th Street. 
Coachella Green Haus, Applicant. PC Meeting Minute Approvals for September 2nd, 2020, October 7th, 
2020 and November 18th, 2020.  
 
Comments made by:  
Pedro Padilla, Applicant. 
Bill Sanchez, Applicant. 
 
Motion to continue this item to the February 17th, 2021 City of Coachella Planning Commission Meeting. 
 
Made by: Commissioner Gonzalez. 
Seconded by: Commissioner Navarrete. 
Motion passes by the following vote: 
AYES: Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Huazano, Commissioner Navarrete, Vice Chair Virgen, 
Alternate Commissioner Leal. 
NOES: None.  
ABSTAIN: None.  
ABSENT: Chair Soliz. 

4. Update on the Coachella 6th Cycle Housing Element efforts. 

This item was added in redundancy and was taken off the agenda as noted above under “Approval of 
Agenda:”  

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL): 

None.  

INFORMATIONAL: 
 
Announcement for new assistant director position. 
 
CHOC housing project new Bagdad St. update. 
 
Cannabis Social Equity Program update.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

12

Item 2.



Agenda Planning Commission January 20, 2021 
Page 4 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 

 
Meeting adjourned at 7:16 p.m. motioned by Commissioner Gonzalez and seconded by Vice Chair Virgen.    
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
______________________ 
Yesenia Becerril 
Planning Secretary 

 
 

 
Complete Agenda Packets are available for public inspection in the  

Planning Department at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California, and on the  
City’s website www.coachella.org. 

 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

13

Item 2.



 

STAFF REPORT 

3/17/2021 

TO: Planning Commission Chair and Commissioners 

FROM: Luis Lopez, Development Services Director  

SUBJECT: Review of Public Art – Harvest Mural Frame in City Library 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission authorize the City Manager to accept the 

donation of the “Coachella Valley Harvest Mural” painting to be installed in the City Library 

located at 1544 6th Street. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Section 2.68.020(A) of the Coachella Municipal Code designates the Planning Commission as the 

City’s “Public Arts Commission” for purposes of reviewing requests for public art, as they relate 

to use of the City’s development impact fees (fund) for art in public places.  In February 2021 the 

City Council created a new “Culture and Arts Commission” that will take the place of the Planning 

Commission for reviewing public art.  Ordinance No. 1172 which amends Section 2.68.020(A) 

became effective on March 10, 2021 and the City Council will be appointing the members of the 

Culture and Arts Commission in April 2021.  As such, this will be the last public art review to be 

bought before the Planning Commission.  

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The City’s Public Works Director was recently contacted by Mr. Billy Steinberg, a well-known 

grape grower and published songwriter, whose family owned the David Freedman Company in 

Thermal, California for many years.  The Coachella Valley grape harvest scene mural (“Harvest 

Mural”) belongs to Mr. Steinberg.  It was painted in 1979 and resided in the entryway of the 

family’s David Freedman Company headquarters in Thermal.  His father, Lionel Steinberg, signed 

the first Collective Bargaining Agreement with Cesar Chavez in 1970, and Billy worked with his 

father for fifteen years, from 1973-1988, in addition to pursuing his musical career. 

 

Mr. Steinberg would like to donate the two-piece large painting that depicts farmworkers during a 

Coachella Valley grape harvest.   The frame is currently located in Mr. Steinberg’s Santa Monica 

office and there is a tentative agreement to allow the frame to be donated to the City for installation 

inside the City Library located at 1544 6th Street.  Two picture images of the current conditions of 

14

Item 3.



the “Harvest Mural” painting are shown in the attachment to this staff report, and in the images 

below.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The mural was originally painted as one piece of canvas and measures approximately 7 feet by 14 

feet.  When it was relocated from the Thermal headquarters, it had to be cut into two pieces and 

stretched so that it could be hung. Currently the mural exists as two large oil paintings that should 

be hung side by side. 

 

The mural will be placed inside the City Library, on the black wall that is located between the 

Cesar Chavez collection and manager’s office, as shown below.  

15

Item 3.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Because time is of the essence, staff is requesting that the Planning Commission, acting as the 

prior City’s Arts Commission, review the photographs in the attachment to this staff report and 

consider approving the “Harvest Mural” frame painting to be relocated to the City Library located 

at 1544 6th Street, or to provide staff direction regarding this gift.   

 

Since the painting will be donated to the City, there are no fiscal impacts associated with the 

procurement of this art installation, except for nominal costs associated with the long-term care 

and maintenance of the mural.  Staff recommends that the Planning Commission authorize the City 

Manager to accept the gifted mural from Mr. Billy Steinberg.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

16

Item 3.



Billy Steinberg’s Coachella Valley Harvest Mural 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17

Item 3.



 

STAFF REPORT 

3/17/2021 

TO: Planning Commission Chair and Commissioners 

FROM: Luis Lopez, Development Services Director  

SUBJECT: Request for 12-month Time Extension for Conditional Use Permits (CUP 299 

and CUP 300) to allow a 1,839 square foot retail cannabis business and a 1,432 

square foot bar/pub with on-site alcohol sales at 1694 6th Street. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission consider the information provided in this staff 

report and any additional testimony during the March 17, 2021 meeting, and approve the time 

extension request.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

On May 8, 2019 the City Council took final actions approving the HOTN Cannabis Dispensary 

and Pub project to allow a new retail cannabis business and a secondary business (bar/pub) with 

alcohol sales as part of a remodel to an abandoned building located at 1694 6th Street.  

 

The CUP applications, and a change of zone action, approved the project on a 5,000 square foot 

(50 ft. x 100 ft.) lot that has a vacant 2-story commercial building at the SW corner of Grapefruit 

Blvd and 6th Street (1694 Sixth Street) as illustrated on the following aerial photograph: 

 

 

 

  

18

Item 4.



The photographs below depict the vacant building as it existed in early 2019.  The project was 

approved to have two separate business suites, with the dispensary on the east half with a single 

new entrance on Grapefruit Boulevard, and the tap-room/pub entrance would use the existing front 

door on 6th Street.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19

Item 4.



 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

Since the approval of the project by the City Council in May 2019, the owners submitted plans for 

a “partial demolition” of the existing building in order to investigate the structural integrity of the 

building.  The subject building was historically an “unreinforced masonry” building that was 

retrofitted for seismic safety in 2011.  Additionally, the owners changed their business plans to 

expand the floor area of both business and occupy the second floor of the building and to add a 

roof-top deck for the secondary business.  The approved plans submitted by HOTN (Healing of 

the Nation) are shown below:  

 

 

 

 

Approved Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20

Item 4.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved Floor Plan 

 

 

 

As shown on the above exhibits, the building’s exterior was to be modified to create a dispensary 
entrance off Grapefruit Boulevard. Additional landscaped planters along Grapefruit Blvd and at 
the rear of the building were proposed, along with the construction of an ADA parking space 
and covered trash bins at the rear of the property. Enhancements to the front of the building 
include new faux windows, a smooth plaster finish, and new signage and lighting were all 
requirements of the project as conditioned by the Commission and City Council.  The exhibits 
of the prior-approved storefronts (artist renderings of architectural treatments) are shown in the 
images below:  

 

 

 

 

21

Item 4.



 

 

 

 

 

22

Item 4.



 

 

 

 

New landscaping would be installed at the rear of the building and a new planter will be installed 
on the east side of the building along Grapefruit Blvd. as illustrated on the following exhibit. 

23

Item 4.



 

Project Updates/ Revised Plans:  

Since the approval of the project by the City Council in May 2019, the owners reconsidered the 

scope of work for the project and decided to make business changes to create more of a 

“destination/attraction” for the City by using the 2nd floor for the pub with more windows, and 

creating a 3rd floor deck for the pub.  The dispensary would have a corresponding larger floor 

area by occupying more of the ground floor space.  These contemplated changes to the 

building’s design have significant implications for the structural design of the remodel.  

Additionally, the owners have re-branded the business to “Libra – Crafted By HOTN” for the 

dispensary.  

 

The owners then submitted plans and obtained building permits for a “partial demolition” of the 

existing building in order to do additional engineering investigative work for the structural 

integrity of the building.  The subject building was historically an “unreinforced masonry” 

building that was retrofitted in 2011.  Due to the anticipated major renovations, the project is 

subject to meeting the 2019 CA Building Codes, and there were structural elements of the 

building that had to be re-designed.  The images below show the latest floor plans, exterior 

architectural elevations, and artist renderings of the new exterior design, signage and the rooftop 

deck for the project. The construction drawings for this ambitious vision for the business are 

currently being finalized by the owner’s design professionals.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24

Item 4.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25

Item 4.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26

Item 4.



 

 

 

 

27

Item 4.



 

 

 

 

 

28

Item 4.



 

 

 

 

Request for Time Extension:  

 

The applicant submitted a letter dated March 3, 2021 (attached) requesting a 12-month retro-active 

time extension for CUP 299 and CUP 300 which authorized the retail cannabis business, and the 

bar/pub use.  The justification for the delays were explained in the staff report above, in more 

detail.  Staff had previously vested the CUP when the project obtained building permits, but those 

permits expired and there is no sign of opening the businesses any time soon.  

 

The Planning Commission has discretion to approve time extension requests for approved CUP’s 

where there is a justification for the delay in construction activity, and where the project continues 

to be in keeping with City policies and the public interest.  Recently, the City Council directed 

staff to take a hardline approach with the Round #1 Retail Cannabis applicants that have not 

diligently pursued construction, or licensing of the approved dispensary. The compelling reason 

for this involves the City’s loss of retail cannabis tax based due to the failure of the owners to 

execute the project.    

 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

Based on the information provided in this staff report, the “Libra Dispensary and Tap Room Pub” 

project has been re-designed into an exciting project for the Pueblo Viejo district. At the same 

time, the design/structural challenges has resulted in significant delays for obtaining building 

29

Item 4.



permits and a State cannabis retail license to start generating revenue for the City.   Staff is familiar 

with the history of this building and its Building Code compliance challenges.  Staff believes that 

the owners have acted in good faith in moving the project forward, and have had justified delays 

in light of the unusual conditions of the building, especially in light of the remodeling plans to use 

the upper floor and roof deck of the structure.  Since the building is an important gateway into the 

Downtown area and the creation of a destination/attraction is important for meeting the City’s 

economic development goals, staff is recommending approval of the requested time extension for 

CUP 299 and CUP 300.  

 

 
Attachment:  Applicant’s Letter 

 

30

Item 4.



March  3, 2021

Luis Lopez

City  of  Coachella

Development  Services  Director

53990  Enterprise  Way

Coachella,  CA 92236

Dear  Luis,

This  letter  is to  respectfully  request  that  the  City  of  Coachella  grant  us a 12-month  retroactive

time  extension  for  the  Approved  Retail  Cannabis  Dispensary  (Resolution  No. 2019-18,  CUP 299)

and  Bar/Pub (Resolution  No. 2019-19,  CUP 300)  previously  approved  on May  8, 2019.

Delays  have  been  primarily  due  to  structural  issues  relating  to  the  building's  age,  the  extent  of

proposed  structural  modifications,  and  the  current  building  code.  Hidden  and  covered

remodels  have  also  added  to  the  complexity  of  the  structural  design.

Due  to  the  lack  of  existing  structural  plans,  our  structural  engineer  and  the  city's  plan  checker

(Willdan  Engineering)  went  back  and  forth  numerous  times  during  a three  months  process  to

agree  on solutions  for  the  proposed  exterior  modifications.  The  extent  of  our  proposed

renovations  prohibited  the  2019  Existing  Building  Code  from  being  applicable.  Therefore  we

had  to go by the  2019  Building  Code,  which  requires  reinforcements  for  vertical  and  lateral

movement  in each  opening.  To achieve  this,  we  were  required  to  frame  all openings  with  iron  c-

channels.

Willdan  Engineering  finally  approved  our  final  plans  on August  10,  2020.  Once  the  demolition

process  started,  we  encountered  on several  occasions  unforeseen  hidden  structural  issues.  One

major  problem  was  that  existing  floor  supports  were  inadequate  per  the  2019  Building  Code

and  needed  upgrades  and  covered  openings  that  we  discovered  after  design  completion.  These

issues  have  caused  significant  cost  and  time  overruns  to construct  per  the  approved  plans.

Therefore  we  are  now  revising  the  plans  to replace  the  existing  floor  construction  with  a

concrete  floor  and  adjusting  the  exterior  window  openings  to accommodate  the  existing  ones.

Please  see attached  revised  Rendering  Images,  Floor  Plans,  and  Exterior  Elevations.

73726  Alessandro  Drive  Suite  201  Palm  Desert,  CA 92260 31

Item 4.



We would  also like tg take  this  opportunity  to request  a change  of the  business  plan name  from

"Ordonez  Management  Company"  to "Libra  Shops,  LLC." This business  entity  change  is primarily

for  state  law  changes  and,  therefore,  corporate  changes  we've  had to make  since  the  original

application  was filled.

Your  approval  of  this  extension  and entity  change  request  is greatly  appreciated.

Sincerely,

Libra Shops,  LLC

John  Greenwood

CFO

Ph:858-602-5473

Email:  john@librashop.com

73726  Alessandro  Drive  Suite  201 Palm Desert,  CA 92260 32

Item 4.



 1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

3/17/2021 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Luis Lopez, Development Services Director 

SUBJECT: Coachella Greenery Project 

SPECIFICS: 
 

a) Conditional Use Permit 334 proposes to establish an 1100 square foot 

cannabis dispensary within units 1 and 3 of the existing industrial building 

located at 84-801 Avenue 48.  

  

b) Conditional Use Permit 293, (Modification), proposes to modify the phasing 

plan in order to convert what was approved as an interim facility into an 

1100 square foot retail cannabis business and in the future remove the 

existing building that will contain the dispensary and relocate the dispensary 

within Phase 1 of the cannabis cultivation project that was previously 

approved as part of CUP No. 293.   
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt the following resolution for the Coachella 

Greenery Project: 

 

1) Resolution No. PC 2021-01 approving Conditional Use Permit No. 334 that proposes to 

establish an 1100 square foot cannabis dispensary within units 1 and 3 of the existing 

industrial building located at 84-801 Avenue 48 and approving CUP 293 (Modification) 

that proposes to modify the phasing plan in order to convert what was approved as an 

interim facility into an 1100 square foot retail cannabis business and in the future remove 

the existing building that will contain the dispensary and relocate the dispensary within 

Phase 1 of the cannabis cultivation project that was previously approved as part of CUP 

No. 293.   

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The Coachella Greenery Project is proposing to establish an 1100 square foot cannabis dispensary 

for an interim period within units 1 and 3 of the existing industrial building located at 84-801 

Avenue 48. Also proposed is a modification to CUP 293, (Cann Tech) that was approved by the 

Planning Commission in November 2017. The modification to CUP 293 proposes to convert what 

was approved as an interim facility into an 1100 square foot retail cannabis business and in the 

33

Item 5.



 2 

future remove the existing building that will contain the dispensary and relocate the dispensary 

into the office building within Phase 1 of the cannabis cultivation project that was previously 

approved as part of CUP No. 293.   

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

This case was continued from the March 3, 2021 Planning Commission meeting. The above 

referenced applications are proposed on a 3.12-acre site located at 84-801Avenue 48. The aerial 

photograph below illustrates the subject site for the conditional use permit application. 

 

 

 

The photograph below is looking at the site from Avenue 48. As shown on the photograph, the site 

contains three structures consisting of a stucco building in front closest to Avenue 48 and two 

metal buildings located behind the front structure.  

34

Item 5.



 3 

 
 

 

Building Permit History of the Project Site 

According to building permit records, ABC Auto Salvage and Towing was first established on     

the property in 1974. Various automotive salvage and repair services continued on the site for the 

next 40 years. Several building permits were issued for electrical, plumbing and mechanical 

improvements throughout the 1980’s and 1990’s and 2000’s. In 2013, Architectural Review 13-

05 was approved along with the issuance of a building permit to Marcelos Auto Shop to replace 

an existing warehouse with a new 2400 square foot metal warehouse. In 2018, a building permit 

was issued for facade renovation, the addition of a handicap ramp and new entry doors as 

illustrated in the exhibit below: 

 

 

35

Item 5.



 4 

The existing building, which is vacant, but currently licensed to operate the “Coachella Herb 

Plantation” cannabis cultivation and distribution businesses, is consistent with the facade 

improvements that were approved in 2018. 

 

 

Overview of Approved CUP 293 and Architectural Review 17-14 

The Planning Commission approved CUP 293 and AR 17-14 on November 28, 2017. Those 

approvals included the phased construction of a new 67,420 square foot commercial cannabis 

cultivation facility within a proposed multi-tenant industrial park. The project also included an 

interim use facility with a nursery business incubator. An exhibit of the approved site plan for CUP 

293 and proposed architectural elevations are illustrated on the exhibits below: 

36

Item 5.



 5 

 

 

 

 

37

Item 5.



 6 

Overview of the Coachella Greenery Project (CUP 334) and CUP 293 (Modification) 

 

The Coachella Greenery project proposes to establish an 1100 square foot interim retail cannabis 

business within the existing industrial building “A” as shown on the exhibit below: 

 

 

 

 

 

The proposed exterior elevation of the interim dispensary use is illustrated below.  

38

Item 5.



 7 

 

Upon the demolition of the three existing buildings, a new retail cannabis dispensary will be 

constructed on the first floor of the proposed office building facing Avenue 48. At build out, the 

project will consist of the following: 

a) One- two story office/distribution/laboratory building that total 5,360 square feet that 

includes 24 parking spaces in front of the gated entry to the rear portion of the site. 

b) Four industrial greenhouse structures with mezzanines constructed of metal paneling 

and parapet roof structures totaling 15,470 square feet each that includes 95 parking 

spaces. An exhibit of the proposed Coachella Greenery CUP 334 and modified CUP 

293 is illustrated below: 

 

 

 

39

Item 5.



 8 

The proposed elevations for the Coachella Greenery project remain the same as those that were 

approved for CUP 293 and AR 17-14. A few examples of the proposed elevations are included 

below: 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 
Environmental Setting: 

 
The site is designated Industrial District on the 2035 Coachella General Plan as illustrated on the 

exhibit below: 

 

 

40

Item 5.



 9 

 

The project site is zoned Wrecking Yard (M-W) as illustrated on the exhibit below. Surrounding 

properties to the south are zoned M-S (Manufacturing Service) and to the east and west are zoned 

M-W (Wrecking Yard). Properties to the north across Avenue 48 are located on Tribal land within 

the City of Indio and are zoned for industrial uses. 

 

 

 

Surrounding land uses to the north, south, east and west of the site consist of scattered vacant and 

industrial land uses. 

Consistency with the Coachella General Plan  

The proposed project is within the Industrial District land use designation of the General Plan 2035 

Land Use Element. The project is consistent with the development intensity permitted by the 

Industrial District land use category.  

Consistency with the (M-W) Wrecking Yard Zone 

The project is consistent with the development standards of the M-W, Wrecking Yard Zone.  

Consistency with Chapter 17.84 (Retail Cannabis Businesses and Chapter 17.85 

(Commercial Cannabis Activity) 

The proposed project is consistent with the requirements of both Chapters 17.84 and Chapter 17.85 

of the Coachella Municipal Code. 

Landscaping 

The project proposes new landscape planters in the parking lot fronting Avenue 48 and new planter 

along the eastern and western property lines. Additional landscaped planters will be constructed 

in the parking areas adjacent to the proposed parking areas along the four structures that are 

proposed behind the new two-story office building. The exhibit below provides a conceptual view 

of the proposed project landscaping. 

41

Item 5.



 10 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 

The City has determined that the project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA) pursuant to a Class 32 (Infill) Exemption. 

CORRESPONDENCE 

Please see Attachment 4 for correspondence received on this project. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION(S): 

 

It is staff’s recommendation that the Planning Commission open the public hearing and allow 

input from all proponents and opponents of the proposed project. Because the proposed Project 

is in conformance with the City’s General Plan and the proposed use would be consistent with 

the Municipal Code and compatible with the surrounding uses in the area, it is staff’s 

recommendation that the proposed project be approved by taking the following actions: 

 

1. Motion to adopt Resolution No. PC 2021-01 approving Conditional Use Permit No. 334 

and Conditional Use Permit 293 (Modification) with the findings and attached conditions 

of approval. 

 
Attachments:        Resolution No. PC 2021-01 for CUP 334 and CUP 293 (Modification) 
    Exhibit A: Conditions of Approval for CUP 293 (Modification), CUP 334 and AR 17-14 

Historical Building Permits 
Correspondence 

42

Item 5.



   

RESOLUTION NO. PC 2021-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA PLANNING COMMISSION 

APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP 293 (MODIFICATION) TO 

MODIFY THE PHASING PLAN IN ORDER TO CONVERT WHAT WAS 

APPROVED AS AN INTERIM FACILITY INTO AN 1100 SQUARE FOOT RETAIL 

CANNABIS BUSINESS AND IN THE FUTURE REMOVE THE EXISITNG 

BUILDING THAT WILL CONTAIN THE INTERIM DISPENSARY AND 

RELOCATE THE DISPENSARY WITHIN PHASE 1 OF THE CANNABIS 

CULTIVATION PROJECT THAT WAS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED AS PART OF 

CUP NO. 293 AND APPROVING CUP 334 TO ESTABLISH AN INTERIM 1100 

SQUARE FOOT CANNABIS DISPENSARY WITHIN UNITS 1 AND 3 OF THE 

EXISTING INDUSTRIAL BUILDING LOCATED AT 84-801 AVENUE 48; LOCATED 

IN THE M-W (WRECKING YARD ZONE); COACHELLA GREENERY, 

APPLICANT.  

 

 WHEREAS, Diana Palacios (on behalf of Coachella Greenery) filed an application for 

Conditional Use Permit 334 to establish an 1100 square foot interim cannabis dispensary within units 

1 and 3 of the existing industrial building located at 84-801 Avenue 48 and to modify Conditional Use 

Permit 293 to modify the phasing plan in order to convert what was approved as an interim facility 

into an 1100 square foot retail cannabis business and in the future remove the existing building that 

will contain the dispensary and relocate the dispensary within Phase 1 of the cannabis cultivation 

project that was previously approved as part of CUP No. 293;  Assessor’s Parcel No’s. 603-232-025 

and 603-232-027; and, 

 

  WHEREAS, Conditional Use Permit 293 and AR 17-14 were previously approved by the 

Planning Commission on November 28, 2017 pursuant to a Planning Commission Minute Action Item; 

and,  

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing on CUP 

No. 334 and CUP 293 (Modification) on March 3, 2021 at the Coachella Permit Center, 53-990 

Enterprise Way, Coachella, California; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Applicant and members of the public were present and were afforded an 

opportunity to testify regarding the Project; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Project is permitted pursuant to Chapter 17.38 of the Coachella Municipal 

Code, and the attendant applications for Conditional Use Permits to allow the Project; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed use is necessary or desirable for the development of the 

community, is consistent with the objectives of the City’s General Plan, and is not detrimental to the 

existing uses or the uses specifically permitted in the zone in which the proposed use is to be located; 

and, 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the proposed 

development; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the site for proposed use relates properly to streets which are designed to carry 

43

Item 5.



  Resolution PC 2021-01 

  Page 2 

the type and quantity of traffic to be generated by the proposed use; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality 

Act, as amended; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the conditions as stipulated by the City are necessary to protect the public 

health, safety and welfare of the community. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission of the City of 

Coachella, California hereby approves Conditional Use Permit No. 334 and Conditional Use Permit 

293 (Modification), subject to the findings listed below and the attached Conditions of Approval for 

the Coachella Greenery Project (CUP 334) and Cann Tech Cannabis Cultivation Facility (CUP 293 

Modification) (contained in “Exhibit A” and made a part herein). 

 

Findings for Conditional Use Permit No. 334 and Conditional Use Permit 293 

(Modification) 

 

1. The Conditional Use Permits are consistent with the goals, objectives, policies, and 

implementation measures of the Coachella General Plan 2035. The site has an Industrial District 

land use designation that allows for the proposed development. The proposed uses on the site 

are in keeping with the policies of the Industrial District land use classification and the Project 

is internally consistent with other General Plan policies for this type of development.  

 

2. The Projects are in compliance with the applicable land use regulations and development 

standards of the City’s Zoning Code. The site plan for CUP 334 proposes an interim cannabis 

dispensary within the existing building located at 84-801 Avenue 48 and Conditional Use Permit 

293 (Modification) proposes the phased construction an 67,420 square foot commercial cannabis 

cultivation facility within a multi-tenant industrial park.  The Projects comply with the 

applicable M-W (Wrecking Yard Zone) zoning standards as proposed and with Chapter 17.84 

and 17.85 of the Coachella Municipal Code regarding Retail Cannabis Businesses and 

Commercial Cannabis Activity. 

 

3. Every use, development of land and application of architectural guidelines and development 

standards shall be considered on the basis of the suitability of the site for a particular use or 

development intended, and the total development, including the prescribed development 

standards, shall be so arranged as to avoid traffic congestion, ensure the protection of public 

health, safety and general welfare, prevent adverse effects on neighboring property and shall be 

in accord with all elements of the general plan. The Project site is within the Industrial District 

land use designation of the City’s general plan.  This category provides for a broad spectrum of 

industrial land uses. The proposed uses are compatible with existing adjacent land uses.  

 

4. The City has determined that the project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 of the CEQA guidelines that provides for a Class 32 

exemption. A Class 32 CEQA exemption exempts infill developments within City limits on a 

project site based on the following:  (a) The project is consistent with the applicable general plan 

designation and all applicable general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation 

and regulations.(b) The proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no 

more than five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses.(c) The project site has no value as 

44

Item 5.



  Resolution PC 2021-01 

  Page 3 

habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species.(d) Approval of the project would not result 

in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality.(e) The site can 

be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. CUP 334 and CUP 293 

(Modification) meet all five criteria required for a Class 32 CEQA exemption. 

 

PASSED APPROVED and ADOPTED this 3rd day of March 2021. 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Stephanie Virgen, Chairperson 

Coachella Planning Commission 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

___________________________________ 

Yesenia Becerril  

Planning Commission Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney 

 

45

Item 5.



   

 

                I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. PC-2021-01, was duly 

adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Coachella, California, 

held on the 3rd day of March 2021, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES:    

   

NOES:    

   

ABSENT:    

 

ABSTAIN:   

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Yesenia Becerril 

Planning Commission Secretary 
 

46

Item 5.



EXHIBIT A  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  

FOR COACHELLA HERB PLANTATION CAMPUS  

 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 293 (MODIFICATION), 

 COACHELLA GREENERY CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 334 AND 

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW NO. 17-14  
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR CUP NO. 293 (Modification):  

1. Conditional Use Permit No. 293 (Modification) is approved to allow a 67,240 cannabis 

cultivation facility on 3.2 acres of land. including an interim use facility only. and a 

cannabis dispensary/retail store within the first floor of the 5,360 square foot 

office/distribution/laboratory/dispensary building within phase 1of the  Conditional 

Use Permit. 

 

2. The owner shall process a Lot Line Adjustment/Lot Merger to completion in order to 

create one 3.2-acre parcel prior to issuance of a building permit.  

 

3. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the owner shall submit proof of a reciprocal 

access easement with the adjoining property owner to the east for shared access of 

parking areas and rear service driveways having emergency access over both lots.  

 

4. Conditional Use Permit No. 293 shall be contingent upon Planning Commission 

approval of Architectural Review No. 17-14 for a 67,240 square foot multi-tenant 

industrial development on the subject site. The Conditional Use Permit shall be valid 

for 12 months from the effective date of said approvals unless an extension of time is 

requested by the applicant and granted by the Planning Commission. Issuance of 

building permits and pursuit of construction will vest the Conditional Use Permit 

 

5. Pursuant to the Zoning Code, Regulatory Permits for each individual user of the facility 

must be issued by the Coachella City Manager prior to the initiation of individual 

operations within the facility.  

 

6. All proposed “nursery incubator” greenhouses as part of Phase 1 shall be equipped with 

adequate carbon filtration systems that can recycle the atmospheric air inside the 

cultivation areas at a minimum rate of 100% every 5 hours during all hours of operation. 

The use of swamp coolers or other air conditioning systems shall not be vented directly 

to the exterior of the building without the use of a carbon filtration system.  

  

7.    The owner or successor in interest shall provide to the City of Coachella, the name and 

telephone number of a designated “Dust Control Agent” having the authority and 

responsibility for odor control for the Phase 1 temporary greenhouse campus on a 24-

hour basis. The name of this person shall be included in the temporary PM-10 sign that 

is to be posted on the property as part of the issuance of any grading permits for the 

project and shall be provided to all future cannabis cultivation licensees.  

47

Item 5.



    

 

8.    Prior to the issuance of a Cannabis Regulator Permit, the owner or successor in interest 

shall require all cannabis cultivation licensees to sign a disclosure certificate 

acknowledging and accepting to comply with all directives of the Dust Control Agent 

during the Phase 1 cultivation and processing activities on the site. Said disclosure shall 

be prepared to the satisfaction of the City Attorney, and an executed copy of the 

certificate shall be submitted to the City of Coachella prior to the issuance of any 

Cannabis Regulatory Permit for each licensee.  

 

9.   The interim use facility shall be limited to a maximum of 46,084 square feet during the 

time that the project is under construction. All cannabis regulatory permittees for the 

Interim Use Facility shall obtain a building permit and final inspections for the 

temporary “nursery incubator” premises wherein they make application establishing a 

bona-fide place of business that can be permitted and licensed. All cannabis licensee 

premises shall be subject to review and approval by the Building Official and the City’s 

Fire Marshal and shall require permits and inspections prior to occupancy. All interim 

use structures shall be removed from the site no more than 12 months from the opening 

date of the first interim use facility operations.  

 

10. Pursuant to the City’s General Plan, and because the project site is considered to be 

highly sensitive for containing prehistoric archaeological deposits in subsurface 

contexts, a qualified Archaeological and Native American monitor shall be present 

during all ground disturbing activities within the project site. The owner or successor 

in interest shall hire a tribal grading monitor in coordination with the 29 Palms Band 

of Mission Indians and shall submit proof of procurement of the tribal monitor prior to 

the issuance of a grading permit, unless an alternative agreement is reached between 

the owner and the tribal government staff.  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 334: 

 

1. Conditional Use Permit No. 334 is approved to allow an 1100 square foot retail 

cannabis dispensary within units 1 and 3 of the existing industrial building for an 

interim period of up to 48 months or prior to the construction of Phase 1 of CUP 293, 

whichever is sooner. Upon completion of Phase 1 of CUP 293, the dispensary will be 

relocated within the first floor of the office building as approved within CUP 293 

(Modification) and AR 17-14. Hours of operation for the interim facility shall be from 

9am to 10pm unless superseded by State Law. 

 

2.   All cannabis regulatory permittees for the Interim Use Facility shall obtain a building 

permit and final inspections for the interim facility wherein they make application 

establishing a bona-fide place of business that can be permitted and licensed. All 

cannabis licensee premises shall be subject to review and approval by the Building 

Official and the City’s Fire Marshal and shall require permits and inspections prior to 

occupancy. All interim use structures shall be removed from the site no more than 48 

months from the opening date of the first interim use facility operations or prior to 

48

Item 5.



construction of Phase 1within CUP 293, whichever is sooner. 

 

3.   Architectural enhancements to the existing building and parking lot improvements 

including landscaping shall be completed prior to the issuance of occupancy permits 

for the interim use. 

 

4.   Detailed plumbing plans shall be submitted for water and sewer-upon availability, 

facility will be required to connect to sewer. 

 

5.   Until sewer availability, all wastewater will be contained within a sealed tank and 

hauled offsite as found in WDID No. 7_33CC405783 for Herb Plantations Notice of 

Applicability. 

 

6.   Facility must present current manifest records from authorized waster hauler of waste. 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW NO. 17-14:  

 

1.   Architectural Review No. 17-14 shall be valid for 12 months from the effective date of 

said Planning Commission approvals unless an extension of time is requested by the 

applicant and granted by the Planning Commission. Issuance of building permits and 

pursuit of construction will vest the Architectural Review.  

   

2.   The construction of all new structures shall be in conformance with construction 

drawings and landscaping plans designed in accordance with plans submitted with this 

application and condition of approval imposed below:  

a)   Except for the “Interim Use Facility”, Greenhouse structures shall not be 

allowed and exterior building walls shall include continuous parapet walls 

that screen the roof structures from view to the street. All exterior building 

materials and colors shall substantially match the colors of the front 2-story 

office building.  

 

b)  All fencing or garden walls shall be subject to issuance of a separate 

building permit by the City Building Division. The existing masonry walls 

shall be painted to complement the building colors as part of Phase 1. 

 

c)   All parking lot lighting for the Project shall match the lighting fixture 

standards of the adjoining “Coachella Brands” site, as approved by the 

Development Services Director.  

 

d)  All masonry perimeter walls and garden walls shall be decorative          

masonry with decorative cap subject to review by the Development Services 

Director, and subject to the City’s Building Codes.  

 

3.    All plans, as shown, are considered “conceptual,” subject to revisions as called out by 

the conditions of this resolution. The plans shall not be stamp-approved until all 

conditions requesting revisions have been satisfied during the building plan check 

49

Item 5.



process. Any substantial changes to the plans, including changes shown on future 

building permit plans deemed by Staff to not be within substantial conformance with 

this approval, will require an amendment to the approval of Architectural Review No. 

17-14, including architectural features, materials, and site layout.  

 

4.    A preliminary geological and soils engineering investigation shall be conducted by a 

registered soils engineer, and a report submitted for review with the precise grading 

plan and shall include pavement recommendations. The report recommendations shall 

be incorporated into the precise grading plan design prior to plan approval. The soils 

engineer and/or the engineering geologist shall certify to the adequacy of the grading 

plan.  

   

5.   A precise grading/improvement plan, prepared by a California Registered Civil 

Engineer, shall be submitted for review and approval by the City Engineer prior to 

issuance of any permits. A final soils report, compaction report and rough grading 

certificate shall be submitted and approved prior to issuance of any building permits 

   

6.   Drainage Report, prepared by California Registered Civil Engineer, shall be submitted 

for review and approval by the City Engineer prior to issuance of any permits. The 

report shall contain a Hydrology Map showing on-site and off-site tributary drainage 

areas and shall be prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Riverside 

County Flood Control District. Adequate provisions shall be made to accept and 

conduct the existing tributary drainage flows around or through the site in a manner 

which will not adversely affect adjacent or downstream properties. If the design of the 

project includes a retention basin, it shall be sized to contain the runoff resulting from 

a 10-year storm event and the runoff from a 100-year storm event shall be contained 

within basin with shallow ponding (3.5' max.). The basin shall be designed to evacuate 

a 10-year storm event within 72 hours. The size of the retention basin(s) shall be 

determined by the hydrology report and be approved by the City Engineer. Retention 

basin shall be provided with a minimum of 2.00 feet sandy soil if determined to contain 

silt or clay materials. Maximum allowable percolation rate for design shall be 10 

gal./s.f./day unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. A percolation test for this 

site is required to be submitted. A combination drywell vertical drain field shall be 

constructed at all points where runoff enters the retention basin. Drywell & vertical 

drain field design shall be based on soils borings made at the proposed drywell 

locations after the retention basins have been rough graded. Minimum depth shall be 

45-feet. A log that includes sieve analysis for each strata of the borings shall be 

submitted to the City Engineer for confirmation of depth of the vertical drain fields. 

Underground retention under the proposed parking area will be considered as an 

alternative to surface retention subject to the approval of the City Engineer. Site access 

improvements shall be in conformance with the requirements of Title 24 of the 

California Administrative Code. This shall include access ramps for off-site and on-

site streets as required.  

  

7.   The applicant shall obtain approval of site access and circulation from the Riverside 

County Fire Marshall. 

50

Item 5.



 

  

8.   Street improvement plans prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer shall be 

submitted for engineering plan check prior to issuance of encroachment permits. All 

street improvements including street lights shall be designed and constructed in 

conformance with City Standards and Specifications. Street flow line grade shall have 

a minimum slope of 0.35 percent.  

 

9.   The applicant shall construct all off-site and on-site improvements including street 

pavement, curb, gutter, sidewalk, street trees, perimeter walls, perimeter landscaping 

and irrigation, storm drain, street lights, and any other incidental works necessary to 

complete the improvements. Driveways shall conform to City of Coachella standards 

for commercial driveways with a minimum width of 24.00 feet and curbed radius 

entrances.  

 

10. The applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit for any improvements constructed 

within public right-of-way including alleys. 

  

11. The owner or successor in interest shall connect all new buildings to the City’s water 

and sewer main lines with new meters and shall pay all applicable water and sewer 

impact fees. Sewer and Water Improvement Plans prepared by a California Registered 

Civil Engineer shall be submitted for engineering plan check and City Engineer 

approval. 

  

12. The applicant shall construct all off-site and on-site water improvements and any other 

incidental works necessary to complete the improvements. Size and location of sewer 

and water improvements shall be approved by the City Engineer. 

  

13. Prior to issuance of any encroachment permits by the City of Coachella, the applicant 

shall resolve CVWD issues related to existing tile drains or irrigation mains located 

within the project boundary or along the streets adjacent to the property. If necessary 

tile drains and irrigation lines shall be relocated and easement documents prepared for 

the new location of any such lines. Plans for the tile drain or irrigation relocation shall 

be submitted to CVWD for approval and a copy of the plans shall be submitted to the 

City for evaluation regarding possible conflict with City facilities. The applicant shall 

submit to the City approved copies of any such relocation plans. 

  

14. The applicant shall provide necessary utility easement for IID and underground 

overhead distribution lines. Applicant shall submit to the City a letter from IID that 

satisfy this requirement.  

 

15. The developer shall submit a Fugitive Dust Control and Erosion Control plan in 

accordance with Guidelines set forth by CMC and SCAQMD to maintain wind and 

drainage erosion and dust control for all areas disturbed by grading. Exact method(s) 

of such control shall be subject to review and approval by the City Engineer. No 

sediment is to leave the site. Additional securities, in bond form, in amount of 

51

Item 5.



$2,000.00 per acre of gross area, and a one time cash deposit of $2,000.00 are required 

to insure compliance with this requirement. No work may be started on or off site unless 

the PM-10 plan has been approved, the original plans, and executed dust control 

agreement, are filed in the engineering department at the City of Coachella. 

  

16. The applicant shall pay all necessary plan check, permit and inspection fees. Fees will 

be determined when plans are submitted to the City Engineering Department for plan 

check. 

  

17. Applicant shall comply with the valley wide NPDES permit requirements including but 

not limited to submittal of a Preliminary WQMP for plan review accompanied by a 

$3,000 plan check deposit and a Final WQMP for final approval including executed 

maintenance agreement. All unused plan check fees will be refunded to the applicant 

upon approval of the Final WQMP. 

  

18. "As-built" plans shall be submitted to and approved by the City Engineer. Prior to 

acceptance of the improvements by the City, such plans, once approved, shall be given 

to the city on compact disk in AutoCad format. All off-site and on-site improvements 

shall be completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer prior to acceptance of 

improvements for maintenance by the City. 

  

19. Prior to issuance to of certificate of occupancy, all public improvements, including 

landscaping and lighting of the retention basins, and landscaped areas along the exterior 

streets, shall be completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. An engineering final 

inspection will be required. 

  

20. Fire Department emergency vehicle apparatus access road location san design shall be 

in accordance with the CA Fire Code, and related standards. All portions of structures 

shall be within 150 feet of the approved 24-foot wide fire lane or municipal street. 

  

21. Fire Department water systems for fire protection shall be in accordance with the CA 

Fire Code and related standards. Plans must be submitted to the Fire Marshal’s Office 

for review and approval prior to building permit issuance.  

 

22. The proposed project must show a water system capable of delivering a fire flow of at 

least 1750 gallons per minute for a 3-hour duration at 20 psi residual operating pressure. 

  

23. The required water system, including fire hydrants, shall be installed and accepted by 

the Coachella Water Authority prior to any combustible building material being placed 

on the site. Two sets of water plans must be submitted to the Fire Marshal’s office for 

review and approval, showing compliance with fire hydrant locations per Coachella 

Municipal Codes and related Fire Codes. Hydrants shall be located on the site and at 

the street spaced 350 to 500 feet apart, depending on City standards.  

 

24. The applicant shall submit water and sewer plans for approval from Utilities General 

Manager for review and approval and shall connect to City public sewer and water 

52

Item 5.



systems. 

  

25. The project will require a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP) meets Priority 

Project criteria of greater than 25 parking spaces. The facility will be required to submit 

a source control survey; may require grease interceptor if edibles are proposed. The 

applicant shall submit detailed plumbing and mechanical plans. 

  

26. The applicant shall install an Above Ground “Double Check Detector Assembly” 

DCDA for fire system to protect water supply from contamination or pollution. 

  

27. Backflow devices will be required to have Reduced Pressure Principle Device (RP) 

within 12 inches of water service installed to protect water supply from contamination 

or pollution. 

  

28. The applicant shall install separate AMI metering system for each building, and shall 

install separate AMI metering system for irrigation system. 

  

29. The project must implement the State’s drought mandate which prohibits irrigation 

with potable water outside newly constructed homes and buildings that is not delivered 

by drip or micro-spray systems. 

  

30. All wall signs shall consist of channel lettering. The applicant shall submit a sign 

program for the industrial center prior to the issuance of any sign permits. 

 

31. The applicant shall submit landscaping and irrigation plans for review by the 

Development Services Director. The use of 36-inch box Acacia tress shall be used in 

the parking lot, and for the Ficus hedge planter areas.  

 

32. A sign program shall be submitted for review by the Planning Commission as a non-

hearing item.  

 

53

Item 5.



54

Item 5.



55

Item 5.



56

Item 5.



57

Item 5.



58

Item 5.



59

Item 5.



60

Item 5.



61

Item 5.



62

Item 5.



63

Item 5.



64

Item 5.



65

Item 5.



66

Item 5.



67

Item 5.



68

Item 5.



69

Item 5.



70

Item 5.



71

Item 5.



72

Item 5.



73

Item 5.



74

Item 5.



75

Item 5.



76

Item 5.



77

Item 5.



78

Item 5.



79

Item 5.



80

Item 5.



81

Item 5.



82

Item 5.



83

Item 5.



84

Item 5.



85

Item 5.



86

Item 5.



87

Item 5.



88

Item 5.



89

Item 5.



90

Item 5.



91

Item 5.



92

Item 5.



93

Item 5.



94

Item 5.



95

Item 5.



96

Item 5.



97

Item 5.



98

Item 5.



99

Item 5.



100

Item 5.



101

Item 5.



102

Item 5.



103

Item 5.



104

Item 5.



105

Item 5.



106

Item 5.



107

Item 5.



108

Item 5.



109

Item 5.



110

Item 5.



111

Item 5.



112

Item 5.



113

Item 5.



114

Item 5.



115

Item 5.



116

Item 5.



117

Item 5.



118

Item 5.



119

Item 5.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes for the February 17th, 2021 Regular Meeting of the City of Coachella Planning Commission
	Planning Commission Minutes 02.17.2021

	Item 2.	Minutes for the Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission for the City of Coachella January 20th, 2021
	PC Minutes 01.20.2021

	Item 3.	Review of Public Art - Harvest Mural at City Library
	PC Staff Rpt 03-17-21
	Harvest Mural images

	Item 4.	Request for 12-month Time Extension - Libra Dispensary
	PC Staff Rpt 03-17-21
	Applicant Letter 03-04-21

	Item 5.	Coachella Greenery - Cannabis Dispensary
	PC Staff Rpt 03-17-21
	Reso No PC 2021-01
	Attachment A - Conditions of Approval CUP 334
	84801 AVE 48 permits 1 of 2
	84801 AVE 48 permits 2 of 2
	SunLine
	IID

	Bottom

